
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL 

Chief Executive 
 
 
LICENSING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Friday, 17 November 2017 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 
 

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

10 November 2017 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence, if any.  

2. Minutes of the Meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee held on 10 
March 2017 (Pages 3 - 6) 

3. Urgent items of business, if any.  

4. Declarations of interest, if any.  

5. Immigration Act 2016 Update (Pages 7 - 10) 

6. Implementation of the Hackney Carriage Decals (Pages 11 - 14) 

7. Licensing Enforcement Activity July - October 2017 (Pages 15 - 18) 

8. Chair/Members' Questions/Issues.  

9. Date of Next Meeting - 9 March 2018  

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Membership of Licensing & Regulatory Committee 
Councillor L D Lea (Chair) Councillor D Grocott 
Councillor B A Hughes Councillor P Jackson 
Councillor B Johnson Councillor G Lockett 
Councillor M A Lovatt Councillor M M Lovatt 
Councillor I J Lucas Councillor R Plant 
Councillor D Shaw  

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

FRIDAY, 10 MARCH 2017 
 
PRESENT: Councillor L D Lea (Chair)  
 
 Councillors D Grocott, B A Hughes, P Jackson, B Johnson, 

G Lockett, M M Lovatt, I J Lucas and D Shaw 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: N de Bruin Principal Legal Officer 
 A Patterson Operations Manager - Environmental Services 

(Regulatory) 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillors M A Lovatt 
 

18 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING AND REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 18TH NOVEMBER 2016 
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory 

Committee held on 18th November 2016 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair. 

 
19 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. 

 
There were none. 
 

20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY. 
 
There were no declarations made. 
 

21 AMENDMENTS TO FEES AND CHARGES 
 
Alicia Patterson – Operations Manager, Environmental Services – gave a brief 
overview of changes to the Council’s Fees and Charges, as agreed by Full Council. 
The full schedule was now available to view on the Council’s website. 
 

22 LICENSING ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY - JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2016 
 
The Committee received a report on licensing enforcement activity for the period 1st 
July 2016 to 30th September 2016, indicating that a total of 26 enforcement actions 
had been undertaken, as shown below. The actions had involved reactive responses 
to complaints and intelligence received from the public and partner agencies as well 
as proactive compliance checks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Licensing & Regulatory Committee - 10 March 2017 
 

2 
 

The actions were summarised as follows:- 
 

Frequency Enforcement Activity  

5 Licensed premises. 
 
Letters associated with complaints e.g. unlicensed activities, 
noise, breach of conditions, underage concerns. 

4 Licensed premises. 
 
Notice checks for new premises applications and Applications to 
Vary Licences including revisits. 

3 
 
 

Joint Multi Agency enforcement visits to alcohol licensed 
premises with the Police, Trading Standards and/or 
Environmental Health to deal with general compliance, reported 
breaches of licensing conditions and excessive noise. 

1 Letters to unlicensed premises following complaints re: carrying 
on licensable activities. 

2 Letter to Taxi Operators – 1x re: conduct of driver and 1x re: 
renewal of vehicle. 

1 Letter to Taxi Drivers – 1x re: conduct of driver. 

1 Magistrates Court – appeal against premises licence revocation.  

3 Taxi driver licences suspended or revoked. 1x revocation and 2x 
suspension. 

5 Attendance at Pubwatch meetings in Leek and Biddulph. 

1 Letters re: suspending premises licences for non-payment of 
annual fees. 

 
The Magistrates’ Court appearance was following a decision by the Licensing Sub-
Committee to revoke the premises licence at Downtown Pizza, Cheadle. The licence 
holder appealed the decision but then failed to attend court. The Magistrates’ Court 
dismissed the appeal in September 2016. Mention was made that the business was 
still in operation – this was to be looked into and reported back to Committee. 
 
A member query relating to E-cigarettes was “Some no-smoking signs in licensed 
premises also refer to E-cigarettes, or “vaping”. Could it be made compulsory to 
display such signs?” The officer response was that there was currently no legislation 
to allow the Council to make such demands, barring in Taxis. The signs that had 
been seen were purely discretionary and were not a legal requirement. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 
 

23 LICENSING ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY - OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2016 
 
The Committee received a report on Licensing Service enforcement actions for the 
period 1st October 2016 to 31st December 2016. 
 
The details were as follows:- 
 

Frequency Enforcement Activity  

4 Licensed premises. 
 
Letters associated with complaints e.g. unlicensed activities, noise, 
breach of conditions, underage concerns. Page 4



Licensing & Regulatory Committee - 10 March 2017 
 

3 
 

10 Licensed premises. 
 
Notice checks for new premises applications and Applications to 
Vary Licences including revisits. 

3 
 
 

Joint Multi Agency enforcement visits to alcohol licensed premises 
with the Police, Trading Standards and/or Environmental Health to 
deal with general compliance, reported breaches of licensing 
conditions and excessive noise. 

2 Letter to Taxi Drivers – 2x re: conduct of driver. 

3 Attendance at Pubwatch meetings in Leek and Biddulph. 

 
There was no further legal action taken in any of the cases. Encouragingly, no 
complaints had been received or action taken in respect of smoking on licenced 
premises. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED.  
 

24 CHAIR/MEMBERS' QUESTIONS/ISSUES. 
 
There were no questions or issues raised. 
 

25 DATE OF NEXT MEETING - TO BE ANNOUNCED 
 
A provisional date had been set for Friday 30th June 2017. However, this was to be 
ratified at Council Annual General Meeting and was therefore open to change. 
 

26 COMMITTEE MEMBERS TRAINING SESSION 
 
Four presentations were given for members covering the following:- 
 

1. Introduction to licensing in the Staffordshire Moorlands; 
2. Licensing Act 2003; 
3. Taxi & Private Hire licensing; 
4. Street Trading licensing. 

 
Members raised queries as follows (responses in brackets):- 
 

 Could a list of licensing applications be circulated to members, in the same 
way that planning applications were? (This could be looked at with potentially 
a monthly list being issued.) 

 How was the Council able to adequately monitor taxi drivers in terms of 
ongoing criminal matters? (They had to sign up to the on-line Disclosure and 
Barring Service check (DBS). Drivers were required to advise the Council of 
any convictions as and when they occurred. Also, the taxi trade were 
notorious for telling tales on each other.) 

 There was no right of appeal against a decision not to grant a street trading 
licence. Did this leave us open to legal challenge for inconsistency? (The 
relevant statute contained no right of appeal. The Council had an obligation to 
deal with applications fairly. There was still the option to take a refusal to 
grant a licence to Judicial Review, though this was an expensive process to 
follow.) 

 

Page 5



Licensing & Regulatory Committee - 10 March 2017 
 

4 
 

Nicola De-Bruin then addressed members on the Licensing Sub-Committee process, 
emphasising the need for such decisions to be based on the principles of public law, 
incorporating fairness, equality of arms, evidential and rational. The Sub-Committee 
process was a of a quasi-judicial nature. 
 
The following main points were made:- 
 

 There would always be a Legal Advisor present; 

 There was a right of appeal of the decision to the Magistrates’ Court; 

 Members should always read the papers in advance of the meeting; 

 Members should always be cautious in ensuring that any interests were 
declared, given the directness of being 1 of only 3 members comprising the 
Sub-Committee; 

 The policy and procedure to deal with the application was enclosed with the 
papers on each occasion; 

 Courtesy was required during the hearing to put the applicant at ease; 

 Consideration to be given to the location for the hearing. The Council 
Chamber was sometimes a daunting place when the matter was a relatively 
minor one, with few people involved; 

 The applicant should always have the last word prior to the members retiring 
for their deliberations; 

 If the application did not comply with the Council’s policy, it ought to be 
refused. However, on occasion, the policy reasons may be trivial, minor or 
one-off in nature. In the event of approval in these circumstances, the 
reasons why must be specified in order to avoid setting a precedent. 

 
The Chair thanked Alicia Patterson and Nicola de Bruin for their input.   
 
 

The meeting closed at 11.00 am 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 6



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Report to Licensing and Regulatory Committee  

 
17th November 2017 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1.        Reason for the Report:  
 

1.1 The report is to update the Committee on the new Immigration Act 2016 
which came into effect on 1st December 2016 and has introduced 
additional “right to work” checks for Taxi Drivers and Operators.  

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Committee notes the contents of the report which is for their 
information.  

 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The majority of drivers of Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles are self-
employed.  This means that they are not subject to existing right to 
work checks undertaken by employers.  The new provisions make 
immigration checks compulsory and embed immigration safeguarding 
into the existing licensing regime.  This is in addition to checks already 
undertaken which include a criminal record check, medical fitness and 
DVLA driving record.  

 
3.2 All nationalities, including UK citizens, who hold a Taxi or Private Hire 

Driver Licence or Private Hire Operator’s Licence, must undergo the 
new immigration check.  

 
3.3 Existing licence holder must undergo the check on their next renewal.  

All new applicants must also be checked as part of the application 

TITLE: Immigration Act 2016 update on “right to work” 
checks for taxi drivers, operators, premise 
holders and personal licence holders  

 
PORTFOLIO:  Cllr Michael Bowen – Portfolio Holder for 

Communities 
 
OFFICER:  Alicia Patterson - Operations Manager 

(Regulatory Services) 
 
WARDS:  Non-Specific 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



  

process. A prescribed document such as a Passport or Biometric 
Residence Permit must be provided and checked by a Licensing 
Officer.  A record of the check must be kept.  

 
3.4 If there are any restrictions on the length of time the applicant can work 

in the UK the licence will only be issued for that period.  If, during the 
licence period, the Home Office cuts short a person’s immigration 
permission, any licence issued will automatically lapse.  

 
3.5 The Act also adds immigration offences and penalties to the list of 

grounds on which the Driver or Operator Licences may be suspended 
or revoked by Licensing Authorities.  

 
3.6 The Immigration Act has also implemented changes to the Licensing 

Act 2003 in relation to the right to hold a Premises or Personal Licence.  
The purpose of this is to prevent illegal working in licensed premises by 
making it a requirement for a Personal or Premises Licence Holder 
selling alcohol to have the right to work in the UK. All new applications 
must present the correct identification to the Authority before any 
licence can be issued.  

 
4. Background  
 

4.1 The Immigration Act 2016 came into effect on 1st December 2016. The 
expected benefit of implementing this new requirement is that the 
Licensing Team can be satisfied that Taxi Drivers, Premises Licence 
holders and Personal Licence holders licensed with Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council have satisfactory immigration status and 
have the legal right to work in the UK.  

 
 

5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Members of the Committee are asked to note the contents of this 

report.  No further action is required by the Committee.   
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The additional checks are designed to prevent illegal working in the 
UK and should therefore have a positive impact on community 
safety and assist in the reduction of crime.   
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
The government completed an impact assessment prior to the Bill 

Page 8



  

becoming law. Officers are aware that they must not discriminate 
against anyone and all applicants should be treated in the same 
way during the process.   
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The taxi licensing fees are due to be reviewed in 2018 and 
consideration will be made to ensuring the fees are set to recover 
full costs, including the additional time taken to carry out the 
immigration checks. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
Legal advice has been sought in respect of constitutional changes, 
however we have a duty to comply with these new requirements.  
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
Implementation of the requirement will ensure the Authority can be 
satisfied that applicants have satisfactory immigration status and 
have the legal right to work in the UK. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
No Consultation required.  
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
No Risk Assessment required. 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 Regulatory Services 
SMDC, Moorlands 
House, Leek.  

Alicia Patterson 
Operations Manager 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Report to Licensing and Regulatory Committee  

 
17th November 2017 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1.        Reason for the Report:  
 

1.1 The report is to update the Committee on the progress for the 
implementation of the Hackney Carriage Decals.   

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Committee notes the contents of the report.    
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The procurement process is underway with local companies within the 
Leek area to provide decals for the Hackney Carriage Vehicles in 
accordance with the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy 
implemented on 1st January 2017, all existing and new Hackney 
Carriage Vehicles must display a large decal on the bonnet and also 
the front passenger and driver doors stating “Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council Licensed Hackney Carriage Vehicle”, the first set of 
decals will be provided by the Authority. Additional decals will be 
recharged on a cost recovery basis 

 
3.2 The Decals specification and material suggested is GrafiPrint™ self 

adhesive calendered special formula premium (GSF). The Digital PVC 
printable vinyls (decals) are perfectly suited for long term indoor and up 
to 5 year outdoor applications for signage, vehicle stickers and decals. 
The decal will need to be over laminated with a matching quality 

TITLE: Update on Implementation of the Hackney 
Carriage Decals   

 
PORTFOLIO:  Cllr Michael Bowen – Portfolio Holder for 

Communities 
 
OFFICER:  Alicia Patterson - Operations Manager 

(Regulatory Services) 
 
WARDS:  Non-Specific 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



  

laminate for further protection. The decals can be removed, and will 
cause no damage to the paintwork. The fitting time is around 40 
minutes.  

 
3.3 The Authority will fund the 1st set of decals as per the Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Policy 2017. Any additional decals will be re-charged 
to the vehicle owner. The Authority has also made provision for 
magnetic decals where requested on a case by case basis.  

 
3.4 The implementation and fitting of the decals to the vehicles is 

scheduled to be completed by 31st March 2018.  
 

4. Background  
 

4.1 The Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy 2016 implemented on 1st 
January 2017 (Appendix B) section 8.3.2 introduced a requirement for 
all Hackney Carriage Vehicles to display a decal on the bonnet of the 
vehicle and the doors clearly stating “Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council Licensed Hackney Carriage Vehicle”. 

 
5. Options and Analysis 

 
5.1 No options for the committee to consider – update on progress only.  
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy should 
have a positive impact on community safety and assist in the 
reduction of crime.   
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The failure of the Authority to review, consult and publish the Taxi 
Licensing Policy on a regular basis may result in Judicial Review 
proceedings being brought against the Council.  
 

6.5 Legal 
 
Decisions in relation to a licence application are likely to amount to 
consideration of civil rights and obligations with the result that 

Page 12



  

Article 6 (1) of the Human Rights Act 1998 is engaged.  
 
Should parts of the industry believe the authority’s Taxi Licensing 
Policy is not sound it would be open to them to undertake Judicial 
Review proceedings.  
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
The aim of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
is to improve the economic, environmental and social well being of 
the area.  The Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
has been introduced and written with due regard to the 
requirements to achieve sustainability in the environmental, 
economic and social life of the District.  
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
The proposed amendments arise from consultation with the 
licenced trade. 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
The Council’s Policy will be monitored during the five year period 
and can be reviewed at any time if considered necessary and 
appropriate.  
 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 Regulatory Services 
SMDC, Moorlands 
House, Leek.  

Alicia Patterson 
Operations Manager 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 

Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 

 17th November 2017  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached - None 
 
 
1 Recommendations 
 

1.1 That the Committee notes the content of the report. 
 
 
2 Executive Summary 
 

2.1 In the period July 2017 to October 2017 the Licensing Service has 
engaged in a number of enforcement actions. These activities have 
involved reactive responses to complaints and intelligence received from 
the public and partner agencies as well as proactive compliance checks. 

 
2.2 Officers seek to encourage Licence Holders to conduct their activity in a 

safe manner, maintain good standards and to comply with the law.  
Officers have to exercise considerable discretion when approaching 
individual Licence Holders.  Licensees are often anxious to comply with 
the law and for such cases the officer's role will be to provide guidance 
and advice.  However, in carrying out their functions officers are 
authorised with a wide range of powers and may, for example, require 
entry at all reasonable times or require the production of certain 
documents.  

 
2.3 If on enquiry officers find evidence that the law is being broken and 

enforcement is required, they can respond in various ways.  They may 

TITLE:   Licensing Enforcement Activity, July 2017 – 
October 2017  

 
PORTFOLIO: Cllr Michael Bowen – Portfolio Holder for 

Communities 
  
OFFICER: Alicia Patterson - Operations Manager (Regulatory 

Services) 
 
WARD: Non specific 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



instruct or warn by letter; revoke or suspend a licence; and, where the 
circumstances warrant it, they may formally caution or prosecute without 
prior warnings and without recourse to alternative sanctions. Officers will 
have due regard to the relevant Enforcement Policies when determining 
the most appropriate course of action. 
 

2.4 Below is a summary of enforcement activity carried out during this period:- 
 

Frequency Enforcement Activity  

10 Letters/Emails to Taxi Drivers regarding the Safeguarding Courses 
and the BTEC course requirements.  

0 Driver Penalty Points Awarded  

87 Temporary Event Notices Issued with Alcohol  

19 Late Temporary Event Notices issued with Alcohol 

0 Temporary Event Notices issued without Alcohol  

1 Review of Premises Licence (Stanley’s)  

 
2.5 The primary focus of enforcement work to date has been on ensuring that 

the law in relation to all relevant licensing legislation and guidance is 
properly observed. In considering the focus of this activity the Licensing 
Service has had reference to:- 
 

 Those premises/vehicles against which complaints have been 
received; 

 

 Those premises which do not hold a licence but where intelligence 
suggests licensable activity is taking place. 

 
2.6 A variety of breaches were identified in the course of these activities, but 

were addressed by a voluntary change of behaviour on the part of the 
Licence Holder or via specific action by the Licensing Service and 
partners. In none of the cases was further legal action or the application of 
criminal sanction necessary.  

 
2.7 During this period no complaints have been received relating to smoking 

on Licensed Premises, specifically:- 
 

 As part of the Health Act 2006 and associated Regulations, premises 
have to comply with signage requirements.  All premises visited are 
now compliant with displaying the required signage; 

   

 No Fixed Penalty Tickets in relation to offences of witnessed or 
reported smoking in premises have been issued. 

 
 
 

Page 16



3 Options 
 

There are no options to consider. 
 
 
4 Implications 
 

4.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The appropriate enforcement of licensing Legislation in partnership 
with relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of 
community safety. 
 

4.2 Workforce 
 
None arise directly from this report.  
 

4.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

4.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The discharge of inspection and enforcement functions have been 
included within previous budget calculations for the services. 
 

4.5 Legal 
 
The requirements of the various licensing legislation places a duty 
on Licence Holders under criminal law. In enforcing the conditions 
relating to this legislation the Licensing Service has powers to 
undertake prosecutions relevant to the offences identified.  
 

4.6 Sustainability 
 
None arise directly from this report. 
 

4.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
As detailed in the report. 

4.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
As detailed in the report. 
 

Page 17



 
  
 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 

 
 

Background Papers Location Contact 

N/A Licensing Office, SMDC, 
Moorlands House, Leek 

Alicia Patterson – 
Operations Manager 
 
 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee held on 10 March 2017
	5 Immigration Act 2016 Update
	6 Implementation of the Hackney Carriage Decals
	7 Licensing Enforcement Activity July - October 2017

